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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share data)

            
     September 30,  December 31,
     2003  2002

      
     (Unaudited)     
   ASSETS         
Investments:         
 Loans receivable, net  $ 92,332  $ 71,992 
 Real estate investments, net   41,666   44,928 
 Real estate investment held for sale, net   2,134   1,877 
 Retained interests in transferred assets   22,464   23,532 
 Restricted investments   5,246   5,614 
 Cash equivalents   205   41 
 Asset acquired in liquidation held for sale   —   400 
       
Total investments   164,047   148,384 
       
Other assets:         
 Due from affiliates   572   362 
 Interest receivable   340   243 
 Deferred borrowing costs, net   212   268 
 Cash   115   8 
 Other assets   1,294   433 
       
Total other assets   2,533   1,314 
       
Total assets  $ 166,580  $ 149,698 
       
  LIABILITIES AND BENEFICIARIES’ EQUITY         
Liabilities:         
 Notes payable  $ 35,490  $ 41,191 
 Revolving credit facility   31,850   7,300 
 Dividends payable   2,451   2,707 
 Borrower advances   1,937   1,602 
 Due to affiliates   635   584 
 Unearned commitment fees   294   447 
 Interest payable   206   255 
 Other liabilities   1,680   1,683 
       
Total liabilities   74,543   55,769 
       
Commitments and contingencies         
         
Beneficiaries’ equity:         

 

Common shares of beneficial interest; authorized 100,000,000 shares of $0.01 par value; 6,582,141 and 6,579,141
shares issued at September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively; 6,449,291 and 6,446,291 shares
outstanding at September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively   66   66 

 Additional paid-in capital   94,748   94,707 
 Net unrealized appreciation of retained interests in transferred assets   3,414   3,783 
 Cumulative net income   83,964   78,048 
 Cumulative dividends   (88,870)   (81,390)
       
   93,322   95,214 
 Less: Treasury stock; at cost, 132,850 shares   (1,285)   (1,285)
       
Total beneficiaries’ equity   92,037   93,929 
       
Total liabilities and beneficiaries’ equity  $ 166,580  $ 149,698 
       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except per share data)

                  
   Nine Months Ended September 30,  Three Months Ended September 30,

    
   2003  2002  2003  2002

      
   (Unaudited)
Revenues:                 
 Interest income  $ 4,717  $ 4,836  $ 1,670  $ 1,390 
 Lease income   4,162   4,116   1,407   1,392 
 Income from retained interests in transferred assets   2,045   2,154   669   770 
 Other income   292   910   193   243 
              
Total revenues   11,216   12,016   3,939   3,795 
              
Expenses:                 
 Interest   2,580   2,657   868   808 
 Advisory and servicing fees to affiliate, net   1,365   1,307   472   417 
 Depreciation   1,350   1,310   455   439 
 General and administrative   284   184   96   47 
 Realized losses on retained interests in transferred assets   —   53   —   — 
 Professional fees   121   85   55   19 
 Provision for loan losses   100   65   100   — 
 Impairment loss from asset acquired in liquidation held for sale   67   —   —   — 
              
Total expenses   5,867   5,661   2,046   1,730 
              
Income from continuing operations   5,349   6,355   1,893   2,065 
              
Discontinued operations:                 
 Gain on sale of real estate investments   283   663   283   — 
 Net earnings   284   396   89   99 
              
   567   1,059   372   99 
              
Gain on sale of loans receivable   —   562   —   — 
              
Net income  $ 5,916  $ 7,976  $ 2,265  $ 2,164 
              
Weighted average shares outstanding:                 
 Basic   6,447   6,444   6,449   6,446 
              
 Diluted   6,456   6,458   6,460   6,459 
              
Basic and diluted earnings per share:                 
 Income from continuing operations and gain on sale of loans receivable  $ 0.83  $ 1.08  $ 0.29  $ 0.32 
 Discontinued operations   0.09   0.16   0.06   0.02 
              
 Net income  $ 0.92  $ 1.24  $ 0.35  $ 0.34 
              

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

3



Table of Contents

PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In thousands)

                  
   Nine Months Ended September 30,  Three Months Ended September 30,

    
   2003  2002  2003  2002

      
   (Unaudited)
Net income  $ 5,916  $ 7,976  $ 2,265  $ 2,164 
             
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of retained interests in transferred

assets:                 
 Net unrealized appreciation arising during period   5   1,935   38   923 
 Less realized gains included in net income   (374)   (283)   (120)   (108)
             
   (369)   1,652   (82)   815 
             
Comprehensive income  $ 5,547  $ 9,628  $ 2,183  $ 2,979 
             

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

           
    Nine Months Ended September 30,

    
    2003  2002

     
    (Unaudited)
Cash flows from operating activities:         
 Net income  $ 5,916  $ 7,976 
 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:         
  Depreciation   1,419   1,435 
  Investment losses   167   118 
  Gain on sale of assets   (283)   (1,225)
  Stock-based compensation charge   2   — 
  Accretion of commitment fees   (250)   (277)
  Amortization of borrowing costs   56   64 
  Loan fees collected, net   187   419 
  Net change in other operating assets and liabilities   (109)   (1,206)
     
Net cash provided by operating activities   7,105   7,304 
     
Cash flows from investing activities:         
 Loans funded   (25,000)   (20,852)
 Principal collected on loans   6,198   10,143 
 Proceeds from sales of properties, net   823   3,017 
 Principal collected on retained interests in transferred assets   699   746 
 Proceeds from debt issued by SPE, net   —   24,040 
 Investment in retained interests in transferred assets   —   (1,618)
 Investment in asset acquired in liquidation held for sale   —   (24)
 Merger related costs   (784)   — 
 Release of (investment in) restricted investments, net   368   (886)
 Purchase of furniture, fixtures and equipment   (290)   (186)
     
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities   (17,986)   14,380 
     
Cash flows from financing activities:         
 Proceeds from issuance of common shares   39   64 
 Proceeds from (repayment of) revolving line of credit, net   24,550   (8,450)
 Payment of principal on notes payable   (5,701)   (5,893)
 Payment of dividends   (7,736)   (7,731)
     
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities   11,152   (22,010)
     
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   271   (326)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year   49   557 
     
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period  $ 320  $ 231 

     
Supplemental disclosures:         
 Interest paid  $ 2,542  $ 2,553 

     
 Reclassification from retained interests in transferred assets to due from affiliate  $ 781  $ — 

     
 Loans receivable originated in connection with sales of hotel properties  $ 1,669  $ 2,044 

     
 Loans and interest receivable transferred to SPE, net  $ —  $ 2,810 

     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Interim Financial Statements:

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet of PMC Commercial Trust (“PMC Commercial” or together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, “we,” “us” or
“our”) as of September 30, 2003 and the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2003
and 2002 and cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, have not been audited by independent accountants. In the opinion of
management, the financial statements reflect all adjustments necessary to fairly present our financial position at September 30, 2003 and our results of operations
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002. These adjustments are of a normal recurring nature.

Certain notes and other information have been omitted from the interim financial statements presented in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Therefore, these
financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2002.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect (i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and (ii) the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Our most sensitive estimates involve the valuation of our
retained interests in transferred assets and determining loan loss reserves on our loans receivable.

The results for the nine and three months ended September 30, 2003 are not necessarily indicative of future financial results.

Note 2. Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of PMC Commercial and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, including PMC Commercial Trust, Ltd. 1998-
1 (the “1998 Partnership”), a Delaware corporation formed in conjunction with our 1998 structured loan financing transaction. All material intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Our ownership interest in special purpose entities (the “SPEs”) created in conjunction with our structured loan sale transactions are accounted for as retained
interests in transferred assets (“Retained Interests”) in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 140, “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities” (“SFAS No. 140”).

At September 30, 2003, the SPEs are PMC Joint Venture, L.P. 2000 (the “2000 Joint Venture”), PMC Joint Venture, L.P. 2001 (the “2001 Joint Venture”) and
PMC Joint Venture, L.P. 2002-1 (the “2002 Joint Venture,” and together with the 2000 Joint Venture and the 2001 Joint Venture, the “Joint Ventures”) of which
we own approximately 69%, 40% and 39%, respectively. PMC Capital, Inc. (“PMC Capital”), our affiliate through common management, owns the remaining
interests in the Joint Ventures.

Note 3. Agreement of Plan and Merger:

On March 27, 2003, PMC Commercial entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with PMC Capital. Under the terms of the merger agreement, PMC Capital
will be merged into PMC Commercial, with PMC Commercial continuing as the surviving entity. Each issued and outstanding share of PMC Capital common
stock will be converted into 0.37 of a common share of PMC Commercial. The merger has been recommended by each company’s special committee comprised
of independent directors and unanimously approved by the Board of Trust Managers (the “Board”) of PMC Commercial and the Board of Directors of PMC
Capital. In addition, the boards and management of each company have entered into voting agreements pursuant to which they have agreed to vote their shares in
favor of the merger and related transactions. Completion of the merger, which is expected to occur during the first quarter of 2004 but no later than February 29,
2004, is subject to approval by the shareholders of PMC Commercial and PMC Capital, certain governmental consents and customary closing conditions. We
have incurred approximately $912,000 in costs related to the merger as of September 30, 2003 which are included in other assets on our consolidated balance
sheet.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4. Stock-Based Compensation Plans:

At September 30, 2003, we have two stock-based compensation plans. Effective January 1, 2003, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No.
123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” prospectively to all awards granted, modified or settled after January 1, 2003. Awards under the plans
generally vest immediately.

We granted 5,000 options during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and recorded compensation expense of approximately $2,000. If we had followed
SFAS No. 123 for all options granted, we would not have recorded any material compensation expense during the nine and three months ended September 30,
2002.

Note 5. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:

FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB 51” (“FIN 46”) in January 2003. The primary
objectives of FIN 46 are to provide guidance on the identification of entities for which control is achieved through means other than voting rights, Variable
Interest Entities (“VIEs”), and how to determine when and which business enterprise should consolidate the VIE (“the primary beneficiary”). This new model for
consolidation applies to an entity which either (i) the equity investors, if any, do not have a controlling financial interest or (ii) the equity investment at risk is
insufficient to finance that entity’s activities without receiving additional subordinated financial support from other parties. In addition, FIN 46 requires that both
the primary beneficiary and all other enterprises with a significant variable interest in a VIE make additional disclosures. FIN 46 did not impact our consolidated
financial statements since it is not applicable to qualifying SPEs accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 140.

In April 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” The statement, which is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and hedging relationships designated after June
30, 2003, amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and for hedging activities under SFAS
No. 133. The statement requires that contracts with comparable characteristics be accounted for similarly. Specifically, the statement (i) clarifies under what
circumstances a contract with an initial net investment meets the characteristic of a derivative, (ii) clarifies when a derivative contains a financing component,
(iii) amends the definition of an underlying to conform it to FASB Interpretation No. 45 and (iv) amends certain other related existing pronouncements. SFAS
No. 149 did not impact our consolidated financial statements.

In May 2003, SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity” was issued. SFAS No. 150,
which is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003, must be implemented by reporting the cumulative effect of a change
in accounting principle for financial instruments created before the issuance date of the statement and still existing at the beginning of the interim period of
adoption. The statement requires that a financial instrument which falls within the scope of the statement to be classified and measured as a liability. The
following financial instruments are required to be classified as liabilities: (i) shares that are mandatorily redeemable, (ii) an obligation to repurchase the issuer’s
equity shares or one indexed to such an obligation and that requires or may require settlement by transferring assets and (iii) the embodiment of an unconditional
obligation that the issuer may or may not settle by issuing a variable number of equity shares if, at inception, the monetary value of the obligation is based on
certain measurements defined in the statement. The adoption of SFAS No. 150 on July 1, 2003 did not impact our consolidated financial statements since we do
not currently have any financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity.

Note 6. Real Estate Investments:

As of September 30, 2003, our real estate investments consisted of 21 limited service hospitality properties (the “Hotel Properties”) that we purchased in 1998
and 1999 from Arlington Hospitality, Inc. (“Arlington”), under a sale/leaseback agreement (the “Lease Agreement”).

At September 30, 2003, the annual base rent payment for the Hotel Properties was $5,239,000 plus 4% of gross room revenues (the “Percentage Rent”). In
accordance with the terms of the Lease Agreement, we deposit the Percentage Rent into
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a capital expenditures account for future capital expenditures required to maintain the real estate investments. Funds are released from this account when capital
expenditures are incurred.

We sold one hotel property during September 2003, which was previously classified as real estate investment held for sale on our consolidated balance sheet, for
$2.2 million and recognized a gain of approximately $283,000. We financed approximately $1.7 million of the sale through origination of a loan with a variable
interest rate of LIBOR plus 4%, maturing in 2023.

The real estate investment held for sale at September 30, 2003 is under contract for approximately $2.6 million and is expected to close in June 2004.

Our real estate investments consisted of the following:

                 
  September 30, 2003  December 31, 2002

   
      Real      Real
  Real  Estate  Real  Estate
  Estate  Investment  Estate  Investment
  Investments  Held for Sale  Investments  Held for Sale

     
  (Dollars in thousands)
Land  $ 5,084  $ 263  $ 5,347  $ 263 
Buildings and improvements   40,151   2,080   42,231   1,682 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment   4,745   227   4,681   214 
             
   49,980   2,570   52,259   2,159 
Accumulated depreciation   (8,314)   (436)   (7,331)   (282)
             
  $ 41,666  $ 2,134  $ 44,928  $ 1,877 
             
Number of Hotel Properties   20   1   21   1 
             

Note 7. Retained Interests:

In our structured loan sale transactions detailed below, we contributed loans receivable to an SPE in exchange for an ownership interest in that entity. The SPE
issued notes payable (the “Structured Notes”) (usually through a private placement) to third parties (“Structured Noteholders”). The SPE then distributed a
substantial portion of the proceeds from the Structured Notes to us. The Structured Notes are collateralized solely by the assets of the SPE which means that
should the SPE fail to make payments on the Structured Notes, the Structured Noteholders have no recourse to us. Upon the completion of our structured loan
sale transactions, we recorded the transfer of loans receivable as a sale in accordance with SFAS No. 140. As a result, the loans receivable contributed to the SPE,
the Structured Notes issued by the SPE, and the operating results of the SPE are not included in our consolidated financial statements. The difference between
(i) the carrying value of the loans receivable sold and (ii) the relative fair value of the sum of (a) the cash received and (b) the present value of estimated future
cash flows from the Retained Interests, constituted the gain or loss on sale. Retained Interests are carried at estimated fair value, with realized gains and losses
recorded in net income and unrealized gains and losses recorded in beneficiaries’ equity.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Information pertaining to our structured loan sale transactions as of September 30, 2003 was as follows. Balances represent PMC Commercial’s share of the Joint
Ventures.

             
  2000  2001  2002
  Joint Venture  Joint Venture  Joint Venture

    
  (Dollars in thousands)
Principal outstanding on sold loans  $ 47,500  $ 28,168  $ 26,310 
Structured Notes balance outstanding  $ 42,085  $ 25,624  $ 23,642 
Cash in the collection account  $ 533  $ 350  $ 242 
Cash in the reserve account  $ 2,855  $ 1,696  $ 1,583 
Weighted average interest rate on loans   9.62%  9.59%  9.17%
Interest rate on the Structured Notes   7.28%  6.36%  6.67%
Discount rate assumptions (1)  6.8% to 11.5% 6.8% to 11.5% 7.2% to 11.9%
Constant prepayment rate assumption (2)   9.75%  9.75%  9.75%
Weighted average remaining life of loans (3)  3.91 years  4.88 years  4.95 years
Aggregate losses assumed (4)   2.68%  3.45%  3.44%
Aggregate principal losses to date   —%  —%  —%

(1) The discount rates utilized on the components of our Retained Interests (as detailed below) were (i) 6.8% to 7.2% for our required overcollateralization,
(ii) 8.5% to 8.9% for our reserve funds and (iii) 11.5% to 11.9% for our interest-only strip receivables.

 
(2) The prepayment rate was based on the actual performance of the loan pools, adjusted for anticipated principal prepayments considering other similar

loans.
 
(3) The weighted average remaining life of loans was calculated by summing the product of (i) the sum of the principal collections expected in each future

period multiplied by (ii) the number of periods until collection, and then dividing that total by (iii) the remaining principal balance.
 
(4) Represents aggregate estimated future losses as a percentage of the principal outstanding based upon per annum estimated losses that ranged from 0.6%

to 0.8%.

The components of our Retained Interests are as follows:

(1)  Our required overcollateralization (the “OC Piece”). The OC Piece represents the excess of the loans receivable contributed to the SPE over the principal
amount of the Structured Notes Payable issued by the SPE, which serves as additional collateral for the Structured Noteholders.

(2)  The “Reserve Fund” and the interest earned thereon. The Reserve Fund represents cash that is required to be kept in a liquid cash account by the SPE,
pursuant to the terms of the transaction documents, as collateral for the Structured Noteholders, a portion of which was contributed by us to the SPE upon
formation and a portion which is built up over time by the SPE from the cash flows of the underlying loans receivable.

(3)  The interest-only strip receivable (the “IO Receivable”). The IO Receivable is comprised of the cash flows that are expected to be received by us in the
future after payment by the SPE of (a) all interest and principal due to the Structured Noteholders, (b) all principal and interest on the OC Piece, (c) any
required funding of the Reserve Fund and (d) on-going costs of the transaction.
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     PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our Retained Interests consisted of the following:

                     
  September 30, 2003

  
  Estimated Fair Value   

    
  OC Piece  Reserve Fund IO Receivable Total  Cost

      
  (In thousands)
2000 Joint Venture  $ 6,473  $ 2,309  $ 1,715  $ 10,497  $ 8,945 
2001 Joint Venture   3,135   1,339   1,982   6,456   5,241 
2002 Joint Venture   3,133   1,226   1,152   5,511   4,864 
                
  $ 12,741  $ 4,874  $ 4,849  $ 22,464  $19,050 
                
                     
  December 31, 2002

  
  Estimated Fair Value   

    
  OC Piece  Reserve Fund IO Receivable Total  Cost

      
  (In thousands)
2000 Joint Venture  $ 6,549  $ 2,464  $ 2,062  $ 11,075  $ 9,312 
2001 Joint Venture   3,168   1,391   2,106   6,665   5,373 
2002 Joint Venture   3,180   1,261   1,351   5,792   5,064 
                
  $ 12,897  $ 5,116  $ 5,519  $ 23,532  $19,749 
                

The following sensitivity analysis of our Retained Interests as of September 30, 2003 highlights the volatility that results when prepayments, losses and discount
rates are different than our assumptions:

         
Changed Assumption  Pro-Forma Value  Asset Change

  
  (In thousands)
Losses increase by 50 basis points per annum (1)  $ 20,808   ($1,656)
Losses increase by 100 basis points per annum (1)  $ 19,216   ($3,248)
Rate of prepayment increases by 5% per annum (2)  $ 21,771   ($693)
Rate of prepayment increases by 10% per annum (2)  $ 21,281   ($1,183)
Discount rates increase by 100 basis points  $ 21,478   ($986)
Discount rates increase by 200 basis points  $ 20,556   ($1,908)

(1) If we experience losses in excess of anticipated losses, the effect on our Retained Interests would first reduce the value of the IO Receivables. To the extent
the IO Receivables could not fully absorb the losses, the effect would then be to reduce the value of our Reserve Funds and then the value of our OC
Pieces.

 
(2) For example, an 8% assumed rate of prepayment would be increased to 13% or 18% based on increases of 5% or 10% per annum, respectively.

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with caution. Pro-forma values based on changes in these assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated
since the relationship of the change in an assumption to the change in fair value is not linear. The effect of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value
of our Retained Interests is calculated without changing any other assumption. In reality, changes in one factor are not isolated from changes in another which
might magnify or counteract the sensitivities.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following information summarizes the financial position of the Joint Ventures at September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002. We owned approximately 69%
of the 2000 Joint Venture, 40% of the 2001 Joint Venture and 39% of the 2002 Joint Venture as of September 30, 2003. We owned approximately 66% of the
2000 Joint Venture, 39% of the 2001 Joint Venture and 39% of the 2002 Joint Venture as of December 31, 2002.

Summary of Financial Position (1):

                         
  2000 Joint Venture  2001 Joint Venture  2002 Joint Venture

    
  September 30, December 31, September 30, December 31, September 30, December 31,
  2003  2002  2003  2002  2003  2002

       
  (In thousands)
Loans Receivable, Net  $ 66,194  $ 70,627  $ 69,266  $ 73,220  $ 65,506  $ 69,025 
                   
Assets Acquired in Liquidation, Net  $ —  $ 1,411  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ — 
                   
Total Assets  $ 71,276  $ 76,434  $ 74,507  $ 81,302  $ 70,445  $ 74,322 
                   
Notes Payable  $ 58,190  $ 62,658  $ 62,941  $ 69,146  $ 58,615  $ 62,152 
                   
Total Liabilities  $ 58,367  $ 62,848  $ 63,108  $ 69,329  $ 58,778  $ 62,325 
                   
Partners’ Capital  $ 12,909  $ 13,586  $ 11,399  $ 11,973  $ 11,667  $ 11,997 
                   

(1) Balances represent 100% of the limited partnership interests in the Joint Ventures.

The following information summarizes the results of operations of the Joint Ventures.

Summary of Operations (1):

                         
  Nine Months Ended September 30,

  
  2000 Joint Venture  2001 Joint Venture  2002 Joint Venture

    
  2003  2002  2003  2002  2003  2002(2)

       
  (In thousands)
Interest Income  $ 4,942  $ 5,370  $ 5,274  $ 5,638  $ 4,791  $ 3,187 
                   
Total Revenues  $ 5,018  $ 5,615  $ 5,557  $ 5,707  $ 4,895  $ 3,216 
                   
Provision for (Reduction of) Losses  $ 45  $ 906  $ (66)  $ —  $ —  $ — 
                   
Interest Expense  $ 3,325  $ 3,794  $ 3,158  $ 3,361  $ 3,043  $ 1,959 
                   
Total Expenses  $ 3,541  $ 4,889  $ 3,267  $ 3,546  $ 3,209  $ 2,057 
                   
Net Income  $ 1,477  $ 726  $ 2,290  $ 2,161  $ 1,686  $ 1,159 
                   

(1) Amounts represent 100% of the limited partnership interests in the Joint Ventures.
 
(2) Represents the period from April 12, 2002 (inception) to September 30, 2002.

Our ownership of the Joint Ventures is based on our share of the capital of the respective Joint Ventures. Our share of the cash flows from the Joint Ventures is
allocated based on the cash flows from the underlying loans receivable contributed by us to the respective Joint Venture less allocated costs based on the
remaining principal on the underlying loans receivable contributed by us divided by all loans receivable held by the respective Joint Venture.
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Our limited partnership allocation of the assets, liabilities and partners’ capital of the Joint Ventures was as follows:

                         
  2000 Joint Venture  2001 Joint Venture  2002 Joint Venture

    
  September 30, December 31, September 30, December 31, September 30, December 31,
  2003  2002  2003  2002  2003  2002

       
  (In thousands)
Loans Receivable, Net  $ 47,412  $ 49,844  $ 28,168  $ 28,951  $ 26,310  $ 26,825 
                   
Total Assets  $ 51,055  $ 53,707  $ 30,312  $ 31,070  $ 28,269  $ 28,838 
                   
Total Liabilities  $ 42,213  $ 44,707  $ 25,692  $ 26,454  $ 23,708  $ 24,202 
                   
Partners’ Capital  $ 8,842  $ 9,000  $ 4,620  $ 4,616  $ 4,561  $ 4,636 
                   

Our limited partnership allocation of the net income of the Joint Ventures was as follows:

                         
  Nine Months Ended September 30,

  
  2000 Joint Venture  2001 Joint Venture  2002 Joint Venture

    
  2003  2002  2003  2002  2003  2002(1)

       
  (In thousands)
Net Income  $ 1,135  $ 1,359  $ 770  $ 801  $ 609  $ 461 
                   

(1) Represents the period from April 12, 2002 (inception) to September 30, 2002.

In accordance with SFAS No. 140, our consolidated financial statements do not include the assets, liabilities, partners’ capital, revenues or expenses of the Joint
Ventures. As a result, at September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002 our consolidated balance sheets do not include the $109.6 million and $113.6 million of
assets, respectively, and $91.6 million and $95.4 million of liabilities, respectively, related to our structured loan sale transactions recorded by our SPEs. Our
Retained Interests related to these structured loan sale transactions were $22.5 million and $23.5 million at September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002,
respectively, including unrealized appreciation of $3.4 million and $3.8 million, respectively.

The income from our Retained Interests consists of the yield earned on our Retained Interests which is determined based on estimates of future cash flows
(determined by our Board) and includes any fees collected (i.e., late fees, prepayment fees, etc.) by the SPEs in excess of anticipated fees. We update our cash
flow assumptions on a quarterly basis and any changes to cash flow assumptions impact the yield on our Retained Interests. The annualized yield on our Retained
Interests was as follows:

                 
  Nine Months Ended  Three Months Ended
  September 30,  September 30,

   
  2003  2002  2003  2002

     
Annualized Yield   11.8%  13.5%  11.9%  13.1%

PMC Capital is the servicer for all loans receivable held by the Joint Ventures; therefore, no servicing fees were earned or received by us for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002.

We received approximately $2.7 million and $2.9 million in cash distributions from the Joint Ventures during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and
2002, respectively. During 2003, an asset acquired in liquidation held by the 2000 Joint Venture with an aggregate estimated value of $1.5 million was transferred
to PMC Capital. As a result of this transfer, our previous cash flow deferral remaining related to the 2000 Joint Venture of approximately $550,000 is due from
PMC Capital and is included in due from affiliate on our consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2003.
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Note 8. Revolving Credit Facility:

At September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, we had approximately $31.9 million and $7.3 million, respectively, outstanding under our revolving credit
facility which provides funds to originate loans collateralized by commercial real estate. The weighted average interest rate on our revolving credit facility at
September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002 was 3.8% and 3.1%, respectively. The revolving credit facility, as amended, matures in May 2004 and provided us
with credit availability up to $40 million until the completion of our structured loan sale transaction in October 2003. At that time, the balance outstanding on the
facility was repaid in full and our credit availability was adjusted to $30 million. The credit facility requires us to meet certain covenants, the most restrictive of
which provides that the ratio of total liabilities to net worth will not exceed 2.0 times. At September 30, 2003, we were in compliance with the covenants of this
facility.

Note 9. Beneficiaries’ Equity:

The weighted average number of common shares outstanding was approximately 6,447,000 and 6,444,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and
2002, respectively, and approximately 6,449,000 and 6,446,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. For purposes of
calculating diluted earnings per share, the weighted average shares outstanding were increased by approximately 9,000 and 14,000 shares, respectively, during the
nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002 and by approximately 11,000 and 13,000 shares, respectively, during the three months ended September 30,
2003 and 2002 for the dilutive effect of stock options.

Note 10. Dividends Paid and Declared:

On January 13, 2003, we paid a $0.40 per share quarterly dividend and a $0.02 special dividend to common shareholders of record on December 31, 2002. On
April 14, 2003, we paid a $0.40 per share quarterly dividend to common shareholders of record on March 31, 2003. On July 14, 2003, we paid a $0.38 per share
quarterly dividend to common shareholders of record on June 30, 2003. The Board declared a $0.38 per share quarterly dividend to common shareholders of
record on September 30, 2003, which was paid on October 14, 2003.

Note 11. Taxable Income:

As a real estate investment trust (“REIT”), we generally will not be subject to corporate level Federal income tax on net income we currently distribute to
shareholders. As such, no provision for Federal income taxes has been included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. We may, however, be
subject to certain Federal excise taxes and state and local taxes on our income and property. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we will be subject
to Federal income taxes at regular corporate rates (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) and will not be able to qualify as a REIT for four
subsequent taxable years.
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The following table reconciles net income available to common shareholders to taxable income available to common shareholders:

                  
   Nine Months Ended  Three Months Ended
   September 30,  September 30,

    
   2003  2002  2003  2002

      
   (In thousands, except per share data)
Net income available to common shareholders  $ 5,916  $ 7,976  $ 2,265  $ 2,164 
 Add: Book depreciation and amortization   1,419   1,435   478   458 
 Less: Tax depreciation and amortization   (1,299)   (1,326)   (433)   (442)
 Book/tax difference on gains on sales   62   (550)   62   — 
 Book/tax difference on Retained Interests, net   328   507   119   261 
 Other book/tax differences, net   199   83   29   30 
             
Taxable income available to common shareholders  $ 6,625  $ 8,125  $ 2,520  $ 2,471 
             
Distributions to common shareholders  $ 7,736  $ 7,731  $ 2,450  $ 2,579 
             
Dividends declared per share  $ 1.16  $ 1.20  $ 0.38  $ 0.40 
             

Note 12. Discontinued Operations and Asset Acquired in Liquidation Held for Sale:

During 2003, we sold our asset acquired in liquidation held for sale for net cash proceeds of approximately $333,000 and recorded a loss of $67,000.

The discontinued operations of our Hotel Properties either sold or held for sale (two and four Hotel Properties during the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively) consisted of the following:

                 
  Nine Months Ended  Three Months Ended
  September 30,  September 30,

   
  2003  2002  2003  2002

     
  (In thousands)
Lease income  $ 377  $ 555  $ 120  $ 129 
Advisory fees   (24)   (34)   (8)   (8)
Depreciation   (69)   (125)   (23)   (22)
             
Net earnings   284   396   89   99 
Gain on sale of real estate investments   283   663   283   — 
             
Discontinued operations  $ 567  $ 1,059  $ 372  $ 99 
             

Note 13. Commitments and Contingencies:

Loan Commitments
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer provided the terms established in the contract are met. At September 30, 2003, we had
approximately $14.3 million of total loan commitments outstanding. All of these commitments were for variable-rate loans based on LIBOR at spreads over
LIBOR generally ranging from 4.0% to 4.5%. The weighted
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average interest rate on our loan commitments at September 30, 2003 was 5.7%. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates and require payment of a fee
to us. Since some commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. Pursuant to our investment management agreements, if we do not have funds available for our commitments, these commitments will be referred
back to PMC Advisers, as defined below.

Structured Loan Financing Transaction
Our structured loan financing is not treated as a sale for financial reporting purposes. Distributions of the net assets from the 1998 Partnership, pursuant to its trust
indenture, are limited and restricted. The reserve requirement ($1.5 million at September 30, 2003) is calculated as follows: the outstanding principal balance of
the 1998 Partnership loans receivable which are delinquent 180 days or more plus the greater of (i) 6% of the current outstanding principal balance of the 1998
Partnership loans receivable or (ii) 2% of our underlying loans receivable of the 1998 Partnership at inception ($1.4 million). As of September 30, 2003 and
December 31, 2002, none of the loans receivable in the 1998 Partnership were delinquent 180 days or more. In April 2003, approximately $1.7 million was repaid
to the noteholders from cash in the reserve fund (i.e., our restricted cash and our structured notes payable were reduced) as a result of a loan, with a principal
amount of $1.7 million which was not repaid at its original maturity. As a consequence, future excess cash flows relating to the 1998 Partnership will be deposited
into the reserve fund until the reserve fund is equal to the reserve requirement. Based on current cash flow assumptions, management anticipates that the excess
cash flows will be received in future periods. At September 30, 2003, the cash balance in our reserve fund, included in restricted investments on our consolidated
balance sheet, was approximately $758,000.

Structured Loan Sale Transactions
PMC Commercial and PMC Capital have entered into cross indemnification agreements regarding the performance of their respective loans receivable sold to the
Joint Ventures. To the extent that poor performance by either PMC Capital’s or PMC Commercial’s sold loans receivable (the “Underperforming Company”) is
pervasive enough to cause the other company (the “Performing Company”) to not receive cash flow that it otherwise would have received, then the
Underperforming Company must make the Performing Company whole. If the cash flow reduction is considered to be temporary, then interest will be paid as
compensation to the Performing Company. In general, when a loan is liquidated, it may cause a deferral of cash flow to the Performing Company and, as a result,
interest would be charged to the Underperforming Company until the cash flow from the Joint Venture repays the Performing Company. If the reduction of cash
flows is deemed permanent (i.e., to the extent that the Underperforming Company will not be able to satisfy the shortfall with the assets they have contributed to
the related structured loan sale transaction), the reduction in cash flows must be paid to the Performing Company by the Underperforming Company. At
September 30, 2003, the maximum potential amount of future payments to PMC Capital (undiscounted and without consideration of any proceeds from the
collateral underlying the loans receivable) we could be required to make under these cross indemnification agreements was approximately $32.9 million and the
discounted amount was $22.7 million, which represents the estimated fair value of the Retained Interests reflected on PMC Capital’s consolidated balance sheet
for the Joint Ventures. Upon completion of a joint structured loan sale transaction and on each subsequent quarterly reporting date, management evaluates the
need to recognize a liability associated with these cross indemnification agreements. Based on our present cash flow assumptions, including stress test analyses of
increasing the anticipated losses on each of the loan pools, it does not appear that the loans receivable sold by us will cause any permanent cash flow reductions to
PMC Capital nor will the loans receivable sold by PMC Capital cause any permanent cash flow reductions to us. Accordingly, we believe that the fair value of our
obligations pursuant to the cross indemnification agreements at inception of the Joint Ventures and as of September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002 was zero;
thus, no liability was recorded. If the performance of our sold loans receivable deteriorates, it may be necessary for us to perform under these cross
indemnification agreements.

When our structured loan sale transactions were completed, the transaction documents of the SPE contained provisions (the “Credit Enhancement Provisions”)
that govern the assets and the inflow and outflow of funds of the SPE formed as part of the structured loan sale transactions. The Credit Enhancement Provisions
include specified limits on the delinquency, default and loss rates on the loans receivable included in each SPE. If, at any measurement date, the delinquency,
default or loss rate with respect to any SPE were to exceed the specified limits, the Credit Enhancement Provisions would automatically increase the level of
credit enhancement requirements for that SPE. During the period in which the specified delinquency, default or loss rate was exceeded, excess cash flow from the
SPE, if any, would be used to fund the increased credit enhancement levels instead of being distributed, which would delay or reduce our distribution. In general,
there can be no assurance that amounts
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deferred under Credit Enhancement Provisions will be received in future periods or that future deferrals or losses will not occur.

Merger
For their services in connection with the proposed merger of PMC Capital into PMC Commercial, our external investment banker will receive a fee of $225,000,
which is contingent upon consummation of the merger.

PMC Commercial will pay a termination fee of $870,000 to PMC Capital if the merger agreement is terminated because PMC Commercial (i) breaches any
provision of the merger agreement that PMC Capital has not waived and PMC Commercial enters into an agreement to consummate a competing transaction, (ii)
withdraws or changes its recommendation that the shareholders approve the merger or (iii) terminates the merger agreement in connection with a superior
proposal. In the event that the merger agreement is terminated because of a breach by PMC Commercial that has not been waived by PMC Capital and PMC
Commercial has not entered into a competing transaction, no termination fee will be payable but termination expenses of $750,000 may be payable to PMC
Capital.

Advisory Agreements
Our loans receivable are originated and serviced by PMC Advisers, Ltd. and its subsidiary (“PMC Advisers” or the “Investment Manager”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of PMC Capital, pursuant to an Investment Management Agreement (the “IMA”). Property acquisitions are supervised pursuant to a separate
agreement with PMC Advisers (the “Lease Supervision Agreement”). Both agreements are renewable on an annual basis.

In the event the IMA agreement with PMC Advisers is terminated or not renewed by us (other than as a result of a material breach by PMC Advisers) or
terminated by PMC Advisers (as a result of a material breach by us), we would enter into a non-compete agreement with PMC Capital for a period of seven years
from the termination date. A fee would be paid to PMC Advisers each year by us in consideration of the non-compete agreement until the non-compete agreement
expires after seven years. Upon termination of the IMA agreement, the fee would be calculated annually as 1% (less loan losses as a percentage of average
outstanding invested assets) multiplied by the average invested assets.

In the event the Lease Supervision Agreement with PMC Advisers is terminated or not renewed by us (other than as a result of a material breach by PMC
Advisers) or terminated by PMC Advisers (as a result of a material breach by us), PMC Advisers would be entitled to receive the Lease Supervision Fee for a
period of five years from the termination date.

Litigation
In the normal course of business, we are subject to various proceedings and claims, the resolution of which will not, in management’s opinion, have a material
adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.

Note 14. Business Segments:

Operating results and other financial data are presented for our principal business segments. These segments are categorized by line of business which also
corresponds to how they are operated. The segments include (i) the Lending Division, which originates loans to small businesses primarily in the hospitality
industry and (ii) the Property Division which owns our Hotel Properties.
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Our business segment data for the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002 was as follows:

                           
    For the Nine Months Ended September 30,

    
    2003  2002

     
        Lending  Property      Lending  Property
    Total  Division  Division  Total  Division  Division

         
    (In thousands)
Revenues:                         
 Interest income — loans and other income  $ 5,009  $ 5,009  $ —  $ 5,746  $ 5,746  $ — 
 Lease income   4,162   —   4,162   4,116   —   4,116 
 Income from retained interests in transferred assets   2,045   2,045   —   2,154   2,154   — 
                    
  Total   11,216   7,054   4,162   12,016   7,900   4,116 
                    
Expenses:                         
 Interest (1)   2,580   1,247   1,333   2,657   1,201   1,456 
 Advisory and servicing fees to affiliate, net   1,365   1,112   253   1,307   1,052   255 
 Depreciation   1,350   —   1,350   1,310   —   1,310 
 Realized losses on retained interests in transferred assets   —   —   —   53   53   — 
 Impairment loss on asset acquired in liquidation held for sale   67   67   —   —   —   — 
 Provision for loan losses   100   100   —   65   65   — 
 Other   405   405   —   269   253   16 
                    
  Total   5,867   2,931   2,936   5,661   2,624   3,037 
                    
Income from continuing operations   5,349   4,123   1,226   6,355   5,276   1,079 
                    
Discontinued operations:                         
 Gain on sale of real estate investments   283   —   283   663   —   663 
 Net earnings   284   —   284   396   —   396 
                    
   567   —   567   1,059   —   1,059 
                    
Gain on sale of loans receivable   —   —   —   562   562   — 
                    
Net income  $ 5,916  $ 4,123  $ 1,793  $ 7,976  $ 5,838  $ 2,138 
                    
Additions to real estate investments  $ 290  $ —  $ 290  $ 186  $ —  $ 186 
                    

(1) Interest expense specifically identifiable to a particular division is allocated to that division. Interest expense which is not specifically identifiable is
allocated based on the relative total assets of each division.
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Our business segment data for the three months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002 was as follows:

                           
    For the Three Months Ended September 30,

    
    2003  2002

     
        Lending  Property      Lending  Property
    Total  Division  Division  Total  Division  Division

         
    (In thousands)
Revenues:                         
 Interest income — loans and other income  $ 1,863  $ 1,863  $ —  $ 1,633  $ 1,633  $ — 
 Lease income   1,407   —   1,407   1,392   —   1,392 
 Income from retained interests in transferred assets   669   669   —   770   770   — 
         
  Total   3,939   2,532   1,407   3,795   2,403   1,392 
         
Expenses:                         
 Interest (1)   868   435   433   808   339   469 
 Advisory and servicing fees to affiliate, net   472   388   84   417   336   81 
 Depreciation   455   —   455   439   —   439 
 Provision for loan losses   100   100   —   —   —   — 
 Other   151   151   —   66   50   16 
         
  Total   2,046   1,074   972   1,730   725   1,005 
         
Income from continuing operations   1,893   1,458   435   2,065   1,678   387 
         
Discontinued operations:                         
 Gain on sale of real estate investments   283   —   283   —   —   — 
 Net earnings   89   —   89   99   —   99 
         
   372   —   372   99   —   99 
         
Net income  $ 2,265  $ 1,458  $ 807  $ 2,164  $ 1,678  $ 486 

         
Additions to real estate investments  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 37  $ —  $ 37 

         

(1) Interest expense specifically identifiable to a particular division is allocated to that division. Interest expense which is not specifically identifiable is
allocated based on the relative total assets of each division.

Note 15. Subsequent Event:

On October 7, 2003, we completed a structured loan sale transaction of a pool of variable-rate loans receivable. PMC Commercial and PMC Capital contributed
loans receivable of $45.4 million and $57.8 million, respectively, to an SPE (the “2003 Joint Venture”). The 2003 Joint Venture issued, through a private
placement, approximately $92.9 million of its 2003 Loan-Backed Floating Rate Notes (the “2003 L.P. Notes”) of which approximately $40.9 million (the “2003
PMCT L.P. Notes”) was allocated to us based on our ownership percentage in the 2003 Joint Venture. The 2003 L.P. Notes, issued at par, which have a stated
maturity in 2023 and bear interest, reset on a quarterly basis, at the 90-day LIBOR plus 1.25%, are collateralized by the loans receivable transferred by us and
PMC Capital to the 2003 Joint Venture. The 2003 L.P. Notes were rated “Aaa” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. We will account for this transaction as a sale,
record an estimated gain of approximately $700,000 and record the value of our Retained Interests at an initial amount of approximately $8.7 million.

The net proceeds from the issuance of the 2003 PMCT L.P. Notes (approximately $40.0 million) were distributed to us. These proceeds are net of issuance costs,
prior to funding the required reserve balance and repayment of the amount outstanding on our revolving credit facility. At inception of the 2003 Joint Venture, we
owned a 44% limited partnership interest in the 2003 Joint Venture based on our share of the capital.
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Financial Information

ITEM 2.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations

     This Form 10-Q contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, which are intended to be covered by the safe harbors created thereby. Such forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of
forward-looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “intend,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” or “continue,” or the negative thereof or other
variations or similar words or phrases. These statements include the plans and objectives of management for future operations, including plans and objectives
relating to future growth of the loan portfolio and availability of funds. The forward-looking statements included herein are based on current expectations and
there can be no assurance that these expectations will be attained. For a description of certain factors that could cause our future results to differ materially from
those expressed in any such forward-looking statement, see “Factors That May Affect Future Operating Results” included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q and the
information contained under the caption “Risk Factors” included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002. Assumptions
relating to the foregoing involve judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive and market conditions and future business
decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are beyond our control. Although we believe that the assumptions
underlying the forward-looking statements are reasonable, any of the assumptions could be inaccurate and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the forward-
looking statements included in this Form 10-Q will prove to be accurate. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements
included herein, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a representation by us or any other person that our objectives and plans will be
achieved.

     The following discussion of our financial condition at September 30, 2003 and results of operations for the nine and three months ended
September 30, 2003 and 2002 should be read in conjunction with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

     On March 27, 2003, PMC Commercial Trust (“PMC Commercial” and, together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, the “Company,” “our,” “us” or “we”)
entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with PMC Capital, Inc. (“PMC Capital”). Under the terms of the merger agreement, PMC Capital will be merged
into PMC Commercial, with PMC Commercial continuing as the surviving entity. Each issued and outstanding share of PMC Capital common stock will be
converted into 0.37 of a common share of PMC Commercial. The merger has been recommended by each company’s special committee comprised of
independent directors and unanimously approved by the Board of Trust Managers of PMC Commercial (the “Board”) and the Board of Directors of PMC Capital.
In addition, the boards and management of each company have entered into voting agreements pursuant to which they have agreed to vote their shares in favor of
the merger and related transactions. Completion of the merger, which is expected to occur during the first quarter of 2004 but no later than February 29, 2004, is
subject to approval by the shareholders of PMC Commercial and PMC Capital, certain governmental consents and customary closing conditions.

     If the merger is approved and all other conditions to the merger have been satisfied or waived, PMC Capital will cease to exist and we will survive the merger
and own and operate the businesses of PMC Capital and its subsidiaries under the name “PMC Commercial Trust.” Following the merger, we intend to continue
to qualify as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”). We expect that the larger equity market capitalization will help create new business flexibility and earnings
stability. In addition, we expect that the merger will provide stability to cash flow available for dividends and ultimately add to our cash available for distribution.
As a result of the larger equity base, we believe that the ability to meet our liquidity needs will be enhanced including larger credit facilities and alternative credit
facilities such as a warehouse line of credit.
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COMPLETION OF 2003 STRUCTURED LOAN SALE TRANSACTION

     On October 7, 2003, PMC Commercial completed a structured loan sale transaction of a pool of variable-rate loans receivable. PMC Commercial and PMC
Capital contributed loans receivable of $45.4 million and $57.8 million, respectively, to an SPE (the “2003 Joint Venture”). The 2003 Joint Venture issued,
through a private placement, approximately $92.9 million of its 2003 Loan-Backed Floating Rate Notes (the “2003 L.P. Notes”) of which approximately
$40.9 million (the “2003 PMCT L.P. Notes”) was allocated to us based on our ownership percentage in the 2003 Joint Venture. The 2003 L.P. Notes, issued at par,
which have a stated maturity in 2023 and bear interest, reset on a quarterly basis, at the 90-day LIBOR plus 1.25%, are collateralized by the loans receivable
transferred by us and PMC Capital to the 2003 Joint Venture. The 2003 L.P. Notes were rated “Aaa” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. We will account for this
transaction as a sale, record an estimated gain of $700,000 and record the value of our retained interests at an initial amount of approximately $8.7 million.

     The net proceeds from the issuance of the 2003 PMCT L.P. Notes (approximately $40.0 million) were distributed to us. These proceeds are net of issuance
costs, prior to funding the required reserve balance and repayment of the amount outstanding on our revolving credit facility. At inception of the 2003 Joint
Venture, we owned a 44% limited partnership interest in the 2003 Joint Venture based on our share of the capital.

BUSINESS

     PMC Commercial is a REIT that primarily originates loans to small businesses collateralized by first liens on the real estate of the related business. In addition,
our investments include the ownership of commercial properties in the hospitality industry. Our loans receivable are primarily to borrowers in the hospitality
industry. We also originate loans for commercial real estate primarily in the service, retail, multi-family and manufacturing industries. We generate revenue from
the yield earned on our investments, rental income from property ownership and other fee income from our lending activities.

     As a REIT, we must distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income to shareholders. Our investments are managed pursuant to investment management
agreements with PMC Advisers, Ltd. and its subsidiary (together, “PMC Advisers” or the “Investment Manager”), indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of PMC
Capital, our affiliate. We operate from the headquarters of the Investment Manager in Dallas, Texas, and through its loan production office in Arizona.

CURRENT OPERATING OVERVIEW

     Our fundings during the first nine months of 2003 did not meet our expectations and our anticipated fundings during the fourth quarter of 2003 more than
likely will not meet our prior expectations. In addition, our outstanding commitments have been reducing from $40.9 million at December 31, 2002 to
$14.3 million at September 30, 2003. The primary reasons for the reduced fundings and outstanding commitments were our delayed securitization, geopolitical
uncertainties and the sluggish economy. Since our capacity to borrow on our revolving credit facility was reducing until the structured loan sale transaction was
completed, we limited the amount of commitments to originate new loans. We did not complete a structured loan sale transaction that we had initially anticipated
to be completed in the first quarter of 2003 until October 2003. While we believe we could have completed a transaction at an earlier time, we delayed our
transaction since the terms of the transactions available in the market were not considered favorable to us (i.e., the transaction size and cost did not reflect our
estimated value of the transaction). During the fourth quarter of 2003, we anticipate loan originations will range from $4 million to $6 million. However, there
can be no assurance of the accuracy of this estimate. When fundings are reduced, our net interest income does not increase as it would have if these fundings were
completed, and may be reduced to the extent principal repayments exceed amounts funded or interest rates decline.

     While our outstanding commitments at September 30, 2003 are $14.3 million and our fundings during the fourth quarter of 2003 are expected to be at reduced
levels, we believe that our commitments and fundings during 2004 will be at greater levels than in 2003 due to the completion of our 2003 structured loan sale
transaction and the recent signs of a possible economic recovery. Even if commitments to fund new loans begin to increase, there will be a lag before we have an
increase in loan originations until the new commitments are funded.

     The majority of our loans receivable have variable rates of interest; therefore, the continuation of the low interest rate environment has had a negative impact
on our net income. We expect that short-term interest rates will remain at current levels through at least the remainder of the year with no significant changes
expected during the early part of 2004.
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PORTFOLIO INFORMATION

Lending Activities

General

     During the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, we originated $26.7 million and $22.9 million of loans, respectively. Principal collections on our
loans receivable were $6.2 million (including $2.6 million of prepayments and $1.4 million of scheduled maturities) and $10.1 million (including $8.0 million of
prepayments and $0.6 million of scheduled maturities) during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During the year ended
December 31, 2002, we originated $32.8 million of loans. At September 30, 2003, all of our outstanding commitments were for variable-rate LIBOR-based loans
at spreads over LIBOR ranging from 4.0% to 4.5%. New commitments generally have floors which result in a minimum interest rate of 6%. Given the current
low interest rate environment and competitive conditions, we expect to continue to originate variable-rate loans. The weighted average interest rate on loan
commitments at September 30, 2003 was 5.7%. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

     We sold loans in structured loan sale transactions completed in April 2002, June 2001 and December 2000. In addition, we sold loans in our structured loan
sale transaction completed in October 2003. Since the cash flows from sold loans will impact our profitability and our cash available for dividend distributions,
information on both our loans receivable retained (the “Retained Portfolio”) and combined with sold loans (the “Aggregate Portfolio”) is provided below.
Accordingly, at September 30, 2003, our Retained Portfolio does not include $102.0 million of aggregate principal balance remaining on the loans sold in the
2000, 2001 and 2002 structured loan sale transactions. Our Aggregate Portfolio outstanding was $195.3 million at September 30, 2003. The weighted average
contractual interest rate on our Aggregate Portfolio was 8.2%, 8.7% and 9.1% at September 30, 2003, December 31, 2002 and September 30, 2002, respectively.

     Information on our Retained Portfolio was as follows:

             
  As of and for the Period Ended

  
  September 30,  December 31,  September 30,
  2003  2002  2002

    
Weighted Average Interest Rate   6.8%   7.5%   8.3%
Annualized Average Yield (1)   7.5%   10.3%   10.7%

(1) In addition to interest income, the yield includes all fees earned and is reduced by the provision for loan losses.

     At September 30, 2003, approximately $66.3 million (72%) of our loans receivable had variable interest rates (reset on a quarterly basis) based primarily on
LIBOR with a weighted average interest rate of approximately 5.3%. The spread that we charge over LIBOR generally ranges from 3.5% to 4.5%. The LIBOR
rate used in determining interest rates to be charged to our borrowers (the “Effective LIBOR”) during the fourth quarter of 2003 (set on October 1, 2003) is 1.16%
while the effective LIBOR during the third quarter of 2003 (set on July 1, 2003) was 1.11%.

Problem Loans

     Senior management closely monitors our Problem Loans which are classified into two categories: Impaired Loans and Special Mention Loans. Our Impaired
Loans are loans on which the collection of the balance of principal and interest is considered impaired and a loan loss reserve has been established. Our Special
Mention Loans are those loans on which we expect a full recovery of the principal balance through either collection efforts or liquidation of collateral; however,
the borrowers are not complying with the contractual terms of the loans. There can be no assurance that Special Mention Loans will not become Impaired Loans
in the future if there is a deterioration in the value of the collateral.
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     Our Problem Loans were as follows:

                  
   September 30, 2003  December 31, 2002

    
   Amount  %  Amount  %

      
   (Dollars in thousands)
Impaired Loans:                 
 Loans receivable  $1,977   2.1% $1,756   2.4%
 Sold loans of SPEs   1,362   1.3%  —   — 
              
  $3,339   1.7% $1,756   1.0%
              
Special Mention Loans:                 
 Loans receivable  $ 939   1.0% $ —   — 
 Sold loans of SPEs   —   —   1,362   1.3%
              
  $ 939   0.5% $1,362   0.8%
              

     Historically, we have not had a significant amount of Impaired Loans, delinquent loans or charged-off loans. No loans were greater than 30 days delinquent as
of September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002. At September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, we had reserves in the amount of $465,000 and $365,000,
respectively, against loans receivable that we have determined to be Impaired Loans.

Retained Interests in Transferred Assets (“Retained Interests”)

     At September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, the estimated fair value of our Retained Interests was $22.5 million and $23.5 million, respectively. Our
Retained Interests consist of (i) the retention of a portion of each of the sold loans, (ii) the contractually required cash balances owned by the SPE and (iii) future
excess funds to be generated by the SPE after payment of all obligations of the SPE.

     The value of our Retained Interests is based on our estimates of the present value of future cash flows we expect to receive from the SPEs. Estimated future
cash flows are based in part upon estimates of prepayment speeds and loan losses on the loans receivable transferred to the SPEs. Prepayment speeds and loan
losses are estimated based on the current and anticipated interest rate and competitive environments and our historical experience with these and similar loans
receivable. The discount rates utilized are determined for each of the components of Retained Interests as estimates of market rates based on interest rate levels
considering the risks inherent in the transaction. Changes in any of our assumptions, or actual results which deviate from our assumptions, may materially affect
the value of our Retained Interests.

     The net unrealized appreciation on our Retained Interests at September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002 was $3.4 million and $3.8 million, respectively. Any
appreciation of our Retained Interests is included in our balance sheet in beneficiaries’ equity. Any depreciation of our Retained Interests is either included in our
statement of income as a realized loss (if there is a reduction in expected future cash flows) or on our balance sheet in beneficiaries’ equity as an unrealized loss.
Reductions in expected future cash flows generally occur as a result of decreases in expected yields, increases in anticipated loan losses or increases in
prepayment speed assumptions.
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Property Ownership

     Our hotel properties are operated by Arlington Hospitality, Inc. (“Arlington”) pursuant to a sale/leaseback agreement. The following table summarizes
statistical data provided by Arlington regarding our 21 remaining hotel properties:

                         
  Nine Months Ended      Three Months Ended   
  September 30,      September 30,   

        % Increase
  2003  2002  % Decrease  2003  2002  (Decrease)

       
Occupancy   57.92%   61.60%   (6.0%)   63.24%   67.00%   (5.6%)
ADR (1)  $ 54.81  $ 55.55   (1.3%)  $ 56.79  $ 56.63   0.3%
RevPAR (2)  $ 31.74  $ 34.22   (7.2%)  $ 35.91  $ 37.93   (5.3%)
Revenue  $11,085,226  $11,964,575   (7.3%)  $4,225,768  $4,469,726   (5.5%)
Rooms Rented   202,253   215,421   (6.1%)   74,412   78,961   (5.8%)
Rooms Available   349,199   349,684   (0.1%)   117,675   117,853   (0.2%)

(1) “ADR” is defined as the average daily room rate.
 
(2) “RevPAR” is defined as room revenue per available room and is determined by dividing room revenue by available rooms for the applicable period.

     Our income related to the hotel properties is from lease payments. Our lease is a “triple net” lease; therefore, all expenses of operation including insurance and
real estate taxes are the obligation of Arlington. The data provided above is for informational purposes only. All revenues and expenses from operation of the
properties belong to Arlington.

     A summary of financial information for the lessee of our properties, Arlington, which has been derived from Arlington’s public filings as of June 30, 2003 and
December 31, 2002 and for the six and three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, which is the latest available information as of our filing date, is as follows:

ARLINGTON HOSPITALITY, INC.

          
   June 30,  December 31,
   2003  2002

    
   (In thousands)
BALANCE SHEET DATA:         
 Investment in hotel assets  $ 91,757  $103,903 
 Cash and short-term investments   4,204   3,970 
 Total assets   108,866   119,934 
 Total liabilities   96,210   102,564 
 Shareholders’ equity   12,656   17,370 

                  
   Six Months Ended  Three Months Ended
   June 30,  June 30,

    
   2003  2002  2003  2002

      
   (In thousands)
INCOME STATEMENT DATA:                 
 Total revenue  $33,586  $38,581  $15,792  $20,643 
 Operating income (loss)   (3,666)   1,542   (3,044)   1,992 
 Net income (loss)   (4,840)   (524)   (3,358)   234 

     Arlington is a public entity that files periodic reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Additional information about Arlington,
including September 30, 2003 financial information when available, can be obtained from the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2003 Compared to the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2002

Overview

     Income from continuing operations decreased by $1,006,000 (16%), to $5,349,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 from $6,355,000 during
the nine months ended September 30, 2002. Net income decreased by $2,060,000 (26%), to $5,916,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 from
$7,976,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2002. Earnings per share decreased $0.32 (26%), to $0.92 per share during the nine months ended
September 30, 2003 from $1.24 per share during the nine months ended September 30, 2002. The decrease in net income is primarily due to:

 •  a decrease in other income of $618,000 due to decreased prepayment fees received;
 •  a decrease in the gain on sale of loans receivable of $562,000 as there were no loans sold during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 while we

sold loans in a structured loan sale transaction completed during April 2002; and
 •  a decrease in the gain on sale of our real estate investments of $380,000 as one hotel property was sold during the nine months ended September 30,

2003 while two hotel properties were sold during the nine months ended September 30, 2002.

     Significant changes in our revenues and expenses are further described below.

Revenues

     Interest income decreased by $119,000 (2%), to $4,717,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 from $4,836,000 during the nine months ended
September 30, 2002. The decrease was primarily attributable to a decrease in our weighted average interest rate from 8.3% at September 30, 2002 to 6.8% at
September 30, 2003, primarily resulting from (i) reductions in LIBOR, (ii) increased variable-rate lending, (iii) the sale of the majority of our fixed-rate loans
receivable in our April 2002 structured loan sale transaction and (iv) principal collections including loan maturities and prepayments of our fixed-rate loans which
are reinvested in variable-rate loans. Approximately 72% and 46% of our loans receivable had variable rates of interest as of September 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The weighted average of the Effective LIBOR decreased by 131 basis points from the nine months ended September 30, 2002 to the nine months
ended September 30, 2003. Partially offsetting these decreases was an increase in our weighted average loans receivable outstanding to $84.7 million during the
nine months ended September 30, 2003 from $67.2 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2002.

     Income from Retained Interests decreased $109,000 (5%), to $2,045,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 compared to $2,154,000 during
the nine months ended September 30, 2002. The income from our Retained Interests consists of the yield on our Retained Interests which is determined based on
estimates of future cash flows and includes any fees collected by the SPEs in excess of anticipated fees. The yield on our Retained Interests declined to 11.8%
during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 from 13.5% during the nine months ended September 30, 2002 while the weighted average balance of our
Retained Interests increased to $23.2 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 compared to $21.3 million during the nine months ended
September 30, 2002 due primarily to the completion of our April 2002 structured loan sale transaction.

     Other income decreased $618,000 (68%), to $292,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 compared to $910,000 during the nine months ended
September 30, 2002 due to decreased prepayment fees. During the first half of 2002, several loans receivable were prepaid which had significant prepayment
penalties.
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Interest Expense

     Interest expense decreased by $77,000 (3%), to $2,580,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 from $2,657,000 during the nine months ended
September 30, 2002. Interest expense consisted of the following:

         
  Nine Months Ended
  September 30,

  
  2003  2002

   
  (In thousands)
Structured Notes  $1,159  $1,542 
Mortgages on hotel properties   850   866 
Revolving credit facility   545   242 
Other   26   7 
   
  $2,580  $2,657 

   

     The decrease was primarily attributable to a decrease in the principal balance of the structured notes payable from our 1998 structured loan financing
($20.7 million outstanding at September 30, 2003 compared to $28.2 million outstanding at September 30, 2002). This decrease was partially offset by an
increase in the weighted average borrowings outstanding under our revolving credit facility to $21.6 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2003
from $4.3 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2002. The weighted average interest rate on our revolving credit facility decreased to 3.0% during
the nine months ended September 30, 2003 from 3.8% during the nine months ended September 30, 2002.

Other Expenses

     Fees associated with the investment management agreements consisted of the following:

          
   Nine Months Ended
   September 30,

   
   2003  2002

    
   (In thousands)
Lease supervision fee  $ 277  $ 289 
Investment management fee   1,457   1,435 
       
Total fees incurred   1,734   1,724 
Less:         
 Management fees included in discontinued operations   (24)   (34)
 Cost of structured loan sale transactions   —   (57)
 Fees incurred by the SPEs   (237)   (218)
 Fees capitalized as cost of originating loans   (108)   (108)
       
Advisory and servicing fees to affiliate, net  $1,365  $1,307 
       

     Realized losses on Retained Interests were $53,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 which was the result of a reduction in expected future cash
flows resulting from increased prepayments. There were no realized losses on our Retained Interests during the nine months ended September 30, 2003.

     Impairment loss from asset acquired in liquidation held for sale was $67,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2003. During July 2003, we sold our
asset acquired in liquidation held for sale with an estimated carrying value of approximately $400,000 for net cash proceeds of approximately $333,000. There
was no impairment loss from asset acquired in liquidation held for sale during the nine months ended September 30, 2002.
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     Our provision for loan losses was $100,000 and $65,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During the twelve-month
periods ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, our provision for loan losses was 0.12% (12 basis points) and 0.09% (nine basis points), respectively, of our
weighted average outstanding loans receivable.

Discontinued operations

     Gain on sale of real estate investments was $283,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 due to the sale of a hotel property for $2.2 million.
Gain on sale of real estate investments was $663,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2002 due to the sale of two hotel properties for $5.2 million.

     Our profit from discontinued operations decreased by $112,000 (28%), to a net profit of $284,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 from a
net profit of $396,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2002. The decrease was a result of property sales. Results of operations for the two properties
sold during 2002, the property sold during the three months ended September 30, 2003 and the property held for sale at September 30, 2003 are included in
discontinued operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002.

Three Months Ended September 30, 2003 Compared to the Three Months Ended September 30, 2002

Overview

     Income from continuing operations decreased by $82,000 (4%), to $1,893,000 during the three months ended September 30, 2003 from $2,065,000 during the
three months ended September 30, 2002. Net income increased by $101,000 (5%), to $2,265,000 during the three months ended September 30, 2003 from
$2,164,000 during the three months ended September 30, 2002. Earnings per share increased $0.01 (3%), to $0.35 per share during the three months ended
September 30, 2003 from $0.34 per share during the three months ended September 30, 2002. The increase in net income is primarily due to an increase in the
gain on sale of our real estate investments of $283,000 as a result of the sale of a hotel property during the three months ended September 30, 2003 while no
properties were sold during the three months ended September 30, 2002 partially offset by an increase in our provision for loan losses of $100,000.

     Significant changes in our revenues and expenses are further described below.

Revenues

     Interest income increased by $280,000 (20%), to $1,670,000 during the three months ended September 30, 2003 from $1,390,000 during the three months
ended September 30, 2002. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in our weighted average loans receivable outstanding of $29.0 million (46%), to
$91.4 million during the three months ended September 30, 2003 from $62.4 million during the three months ended September 30, 2002. This increase was
partially offset by a decrease in our weighted average interest rate from 8.3% at September 30, 2002 to 6.8% at September 30, 2003 primarily resulting from
(i) reductions in LIBOR, (ii) increased variable-rate lending, (iii) the sale of the majority of our fixed-rate loans receivable in our April 2002 structured loan sale
transaction and (iv) principal collections including loan maturities and prepayments of our fixed-rate loans which are reinvested in variable-rate loans. In addition,
the weighted average Effective LIBOR decreased by 66 basis points from the three months ended September 30, 2002 to the three months ended September 30,
2003.

     Income from Retained Interests decreased $101,000 (13%), to $669,000 during the three months ended September 30, 2003 compared to $770,000 during the
three months ended September 30, 2002. The income from our Retained Interests consists of the yield on our Retained Interests which is determined based on
estimates of future cash flows and includes any fees collected by the SPEs in excess of anticipated fees. The yield on our Retained Interests declined to 11.9%
during the three months ended September 30, 2003 from 13.1% during the three months ended September 30, 2002 and the weighted average balance of our
Retained Interests decreased to $22.6 million during the three months ended September 30, 2003 from $23.5 million during the three months ended
September 30, 2002 due primarily to the completion of our April 2002 structured loan sale transaction.
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Interest Expense

     Interest expense increased by $60,000 (7%), to $868,000 during the three months ended September 30, 2003 from $808,000 during the three months ended
September 30, 2002. Interest expense consisted of the following:

         
  Three Months Ended
  September 30,

  
  2003  2002

   
  (In thousands)
Structured Notes  $356  $465 
Mortgages on hotel properties   274   298 
Revolving credit facility   234   42 
Other   4   3 
       
  $868  $808 
       

     The increase was primarily attributable to the weighted average borrowings outstanding under our revolving credit facility of $30.4 million at a weighted
average interest rate of 3.0% during the three months ended September 30, 2003. We had no weighted average borrowings under our revolving credit facility
during the three months ended September 30, 2002. This increase was partially offset by a decrease in the principal balance of the structured notes payable from
our 1998 structured loan financing ($20.7 million outstanding at September 30, 2003 compared to $28.2 million outstanding at September 30, 2002).

Other Expenses

     Fees associated with the investment management agreements consisted of the following:

          
   Three Months Ended
   September 30,

   
   2003  2002

    
   (In thousands)
Lease supervision fee  $ 92  $ 89 
Investment management fee   493   480 
       
Total fees incurred   585   569 
Less:         
 Management fees included in discontinued operations   (8)   (8)
 Fees incurred by the SPEs   (78)   (81)
 Fees capitalized as cost of originating loans   (27)   (63)
       
Advisory and servicing fees to affiliate, net  $472  $417 
       

Provision for loan losses

     Our provision for loan losses was $100,000 during the three months ended September 30, 2003. We had no provision for loan losses during the three months
ended September 30, 2002. Our loan loss provision was established based on the determination, through an evaluation of the recoverability of individual loans
receivable, by our Board that significant doubt exists as to the ultimate realization of the specific loan receivable. The determination of whether significant doubt
exists and whether a loan loss reserve is necessary for each loan receivable requires judgment and consideration of the facts and circumstances existing at the
evaluation date. The $100,000 provision for loan losses recorded during the three months ended September 30, 2003 was related to two loans receivable that we
identified as Impaired Loans.
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Discontinued operations

     Gain on sale of real estate investments was $283,000 during the three months ended September 30, 2003 due to the sale of a hotel property for $2.2 million.
During the three months ended September 30, 2002 we did not sell any properties.

     Our profit from discontinued operations decreased by $10,000 (10%), to a net profit of $89,000 during the three months ended September 30, 2003 from a net
profit of $99,000 during the three months ended September 30, 2002. Results of operations for the property sold during the three months ended September 30,
2003 and the property held for sale at September 30, 2003 are included in discontinued operations for both the three months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flow Analysis

     We generated $7,105,000 and $7,304,000 from operating activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The primary
source of funds from operating activities is our net income which was $5,916,000 and $7,976,000 (a decrease of $2,060,000) during the nine months ended
September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Our cash flows from operating activities were also affected by the change in our current assets and current liabilities
which increased by $1,097,000. The primary reasons for the increase in cash flows from our current assets and current liabilities were increases in borrower
advances and accounts payable.

     Our investing activities reflect a net use of funds of $17,986,000 and a net source of funds of $14,380,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2003
and 2002, respectively. The $32,366,000 decrease in net cash flows provided during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 primarily resulted from the
reduction of proceeds from structured loan sale transactions and an increase in loans funded less principal collected. We completed our 2002 structured loan sale
transaction and received proceeds of $24,040,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2002 while no structured loan sale transaction was completed
during the nine months ended September 30, 2003. During the nine months ended September 30, 2003, (i) our net loans funded were $18,802,000 which is
$8,093,000 greater than the first nine months of 2002, (ii) we sold one hotel property and our asset acquired in liquidation and received net proceeds of $823,000
during the first nine months of 2003 while we received net proceeds from the sale of two hotel properties of $3,017,000 during the first nine months of 2002 and
(iii) we incurred merger related costs of $784,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2003. Partially offsetting the above decreases in funds provided
from investing activities was (i) an increase in funds provided by our restricted investments of $1,254,000 related primarily to our 1998 structured loan financing
transaction and (ii) a decrease in our investment in Retained Interests of $1,618,000 due to the completion of our 2002 structured loan sale transaction and the
funding of its reserve during the nine months ended September 30, 2002 while no investment was made in our Retained Interests during the nine months ended
September 30, 2003.

     Our financing activities reflect a net source of funds of $11,152,000 and a net use of funds of $22,010,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2003
and 2002, respectively. The increase in funds from financing activities of $33,162,000 was primarily due to an increase in proceeds from our revolving credit
facility of $33,000,000. We have increased borrowing on our revolving credit facility due in part to the delay in completing a structured loan sale transaction. Our
revolving credit facility was repaid in full upon completion of our structured loan sale transaction in October 2003.

Sources and Uses of Funds

Overview

     While at September 30, 2003 we had an outstanding balance of $31,850,000 on our revolving credit facility and availability of $8,150,000, upon completion of
our structured loan sale transaction in October 2003, the balance was repaid in full. Upon repayment in full, our credit availability was adjusted to $30 million.
Excluding the loans sold in our October 2003 structured loan sale transaction, our borrowing base (the maximum amount that we can have outstanding at any
time based on our eligible loans receivable) was $11.3 million. The cash available from our structured loan sale transaction completed in October 2003 was
$6.5 million after issuance costs, initial funding of the required reserve balance and repayment of the amount outstanding under our revolving credit facility. Our
outstanding commitments to fund loans were $14.3 million at September 30, 2003. Commitments have fixed expiration dates and require payment of a fee to us.
Since

28



Table of Contents

some commitments expire without the proposed loan closing, the total committed amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

     During the fourth quarter of 2003, we anticipate loan originations will range from $4 million to $6 million. We expect our loan originations anticipated to
occur during the next twelve months, including those on which we have commitments at September 30, 2003, to be funded primarily through (i) proceeds from
our structured loan sale transaction, (ii) advances under our revolving credit facility and (iii) sales of our hotel properties.

     We have $1.5 million in mortgages payable at an interest rate of 7.5% that mature in June 2004 and $1.5 million in mortgages payable at an interest rate of
8.0% that mature in October 2004. We anticipate that these mortgages payable will either be “rolled-over” into new mortgages payable with an extended maturity
or repaid at maturity.

Sources of Funds

     General

     We expect that funds available as a result of the completion of our structured loan sale transaction and to the extent necessary, the sources of funds described
below, should be sufficient to meet our working capital needs. However, there can be no assurance that we will be able to raise funds through these financing
sources. If these sources are not available, we may have to originate loans at reduced levels, refer commitments back to PMC Advisers, or sell assets. Pursuant to
our loan origination agreement with PMC Advisers and PMC Capital, if we do not have available capital to fund outstanding commitments, PMC Advisers will
refer such commitments to our affiliates and we will receive no income from those outstanding commitments.

     To meet our liquidity requirements, including origination of new loans, we primarily generate funds from the following sources:

 •  Structured loan sales;

 •  Borrowings under our short-term collateralized revolving credit facility;

 •  Borrowings collateralized by our hotel properties; and/or

 •  Sales of hotel properties.

     A reduction in the availability of these sources of funds could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. See
“Structured Loan Sale Transactions.”

     Additional sources of funds include principal and interest collections on our existing loans receivable, rent collected on our hotel properties and the cash flows
from our Retained Interests. To the extent these sources represent REIT taxable income, such amounts have historically been distributed to our shareholders. As a
result, those earnings are generally not available to fund future investments.

     Structured Loan Sale Transactions

     Our primary source of funds has been structured loan sale transactions. We generated net proceeds of $24.0 million, $29.5 million and $49.2 million from the
completion of our 2002, 2001 and 2000 structured loan sale transactions, respectively. In addition, we generated net proceeds of $40.0 million from the
completion of our structured loan sale transaction in October 2003.

     Since we rely on structured loan sale transactions as our primary source of operating capital to fund new loan receivable originations, any adverse changes in
our ability to complete this type of transaction, including any negative impact on the asset-backed securities market for the type of product we generate, could
have a detrimental effect on our ability to sell loans receivable thereby reducing our ability to originate loans.
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     Debt

     For our short-term working capital needs, including loan originations, at September 30, 2003, we had a $40 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”)
which was adjusted to $30 million in October 2003 upon completion of our structured loan sale transaction. The maximum amount (the “Borrowing Base”) that
we can have outstanding at any time is based on eligible loans receivable used as collateral. The Borrowing Base available on each eligible loan receivable is the
lesser of (a) 60% of the value of the project underlying the loan receivable collateralizing the borrowing or (b) 85% of the amount of the loan receivable
outstanding. Excluding the loans sold in our October 2003 structured loan sale transaction, based on our eligible loans receivable, our Borrowing Base was
$11.3 million. We are charged interest on the balance outstanding under the Revolver at our election of either the prime rate of the lender or 162.5 basis points
over the 30, 60 or 90-day LIBOR. As of September 30, 2003, we had $31.9 million outstanding under this facility with a weighted average interest rate of 3.8%.
The facility matures in May 2004. We repaid the amount outstanding under our Revolver with proceeds from our structured loan sale transaction completed in
October 2003.

     With regard to our hotel properties, we continue to pursue financings secured by mortgages on individual properties owned by us. As of September 30, 2003,
we had eleven financings secured by mortgages on our hotel properties for an aggregate remaining outstanding principal balance of $14.8 million at a weighted
average interest rate of 7.2%. The related notes have interest rates ranging from 5.4% to 8.5% and maturities ranging from June 2004 to August 2019.

Uses of Funds

     General

     The primary use of our funds is to originate loans to small businesses in the limited service hospitality industry. We also use funds for payment of dividends to
shareholders, management and advisory fees (in lieu of salaries and other administrative overhead), general corporate overhead, and interest and principal
payments on borrowed funds. As a REIT, we must distribute to our shareholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable income to maintain our tax status under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. As a result, those earnings will not be available to fund future investments. See “Dividends.”

     We have $1.5 million in mortgages payable at an interest rate of 7.5% that mature in June 2004 and $1.5 million in mortgages payable at an interest rate of
8.0% that mature in October 2004. We anticipate that these mortgages payable will either be “rolled-over” into new mortgages payable with an extended maturity
or repaid at maturity.

     To the extent funds are available, management believes that there may be alternative investment opportunities including investments in real estate. While we
have historically been a lender to the limited service hospitality industry, we are not necessarily focusing solely on hospitality properties. We believe that there
may be attractive acquisition opportunities in either retail shopping centers or commercial office buildings. We are attempting to identify properties that we intend
to leverage up to 75% of their value. Without leverage, it is unlikely that our return on net equity investment will provide us with adequate investment returns.
There can be no assurance that any properties will be identified or, to the extent identified, will be acquired. To date, no opportunities have been identified.

     Loan Originations

     At September 30, 2003, our commitments to originate loans were approximately $14.3 million. We anticipate that our loan origination volume (which
averaged approximately $8.2 million per quarter in 2002 and $8.9 million per quarter during the first three quarters of 2003) will range from $4 million to
$6 million during the fourth quarter of 2003.

Impact of Inflation

     To the extent that we originate fixed-rate loans while we borrow funds at variable rates, we have an interest rate mismatch. In an inflationary environment, if
variable-rates were to rise significantly and we were originating fixed-rate loans, our net interest margin would be reduced. Currently we are originating variable-
rate loans and $31.9 million of our debt has variable rates of interest; therefore, we do not believe inflation will have a significant impact on us in the near future.
To the extent costs of operations rise while economic conditions prevent a matching rise in revenue rates (i.e., room rates, menu

30



Table of Contents

prices, gasoline prices, etc.), our borrowers and Arlington would be negatively impacted and loan losses and lease income could be affected. Accordingly, our
borrowers can be impacted by inflation. In addition, in an inflationary environment we could experience pressure to increase our income and our dividend yield to
maintain our stock price.

Summarized Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Contingencies

     Our contractual obligations at September 30, 2003 are summarized as follows:

                     
  Payments Due by Period

  
Contractual      Less than  1 to 3  4 to 5  After 5
Obligations  Total  1 year  years  years  years

     
  (In thousands)
Notes payable (1)  $ 35,490  $ 6,296  $ 15,878  $ 2,735  $ 10,581 
Revolving credit facility (2)   31,850   31,850   —   —   — 
Advisory agreements (3)   594   594   —   —   — 
                
Total contractual cash obligations  $ 67,934  $ 38,740  $ 15,878  $ 2,735  $ 10,581 
                

(1) Maturities of our 1998 structured notes payable ($20.7 million at September 30, 2003) are dependent upon cash flows received from the underlying loans
receivable. Our estimate of their repayment is based on scheduled principal payments on the underlying loans receivable. This estimate will differ from
actual amounts to the extent we experience prepayments and/or loan losses.

 
(2) The Borrowing Base on our revolving credit facility was $40.0 million. The amount outstanding at September 30, 2003 was repaid in October 2003.
 
(3) Represents amounts due to PMC Advisers under our Investment Management Agreement and Lease Supervision Agreement for the third quarter of 2003.

     Our commitments at September 30, 2003 are summarized as follows:

                     
      Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

      
  Total Amounts  Less than  1 to 3  4 to 5  After 5

Other Commitments  Committed  1 year  years  years  years

     
  (In thousands)
Indemnification (1)  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ — 
Other commitments (2)   14,333   14,333   —   —   — 
                
Total commitments  $ 14,333  $ 14,333  $ —  $ —  $ — 
                

(1) Represents our cross indemnification agreements with PMC Capital related to the special purpose entities created in conjunction with our structured loan
sale transactions completed in 2002, 2001 and 2000 with a maximum exposure at September 30, 2003 of $32.9 million. We valued our obligations
pursuant to these cross indemnification agreements at zero.

 
(2) Represents loan commitments outstanding.

     See Note 13 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for a detailed discussion of commitments and contingencies.

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE OPERATING RESULTS

     Asset-Backed Structured Loan Sale Transaction Market: A number of factors could impair our ability, or alter our decision, to complete a structured loan sale
transaction. These factors include, but are not limited to:

 •  As a result of certain economic conditions, investors in the type of asset-backed securities that we place may increase our cost of capital by widening
the “spreads” they require in order to purchase the asset-backed securities or cease acquiring our type of asset-backed security;
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 •  A deterioration in the performance of either our loans receivable or the loans receivable of PMC Capital may deter potential investors from purchasing
our asset-backed securities;

 •  A deterioration in the operations of the limited service sector of the hospitality industry may deter potential investors from purchasing our asset-backed
securities or lower the available rating from the rating agencies;

 •  A reduction in the performance of the loans receivable of our prior transactions or of similar transactions (for example, higher than expected loan
losses or delinquencies) may deter potential investors from purchasing our asset-backed securities; and

 •  A change in the underlying criteria utilized by the rating agencies may cause our transactions to receive lower ratings than previously issued thereby
increasing the cost of capital on our transactions.

     In general, to the extent a structured loan sale transaction is delayed or unable to be completed, we will either have to increase our capacity under our
Revolver, enter into new debt agreements, cease or reduce originating new loans until a structured loan sale transaction is completed, or sell additional assets,
potentially on unfavorable terms. In addition, we may choose to sell pools of loans receivable on terms unfavorable to us (reducing our future cash flows)
including:

 •  Increased cost of funds;
 •  Increased cash reserve requirements;
 •  Increased subordinated portions of loans receivable; or
 •  Decreased transaction size.

     Loan Portfolio Trend: We primarily originate variable-rate loans based on LIBOR which currently provides a lower cost variable interest rate alternative to our
borrowers than our fixed-rate loan products. As a result of the uncertainties in the marketplace due to the sluggishness of the economy and the impact of the
ongoing conflict in the Middle East, fewer hospitality properties were being marketed to be sold or refinanced; therefore, fewer property sales were requiring
financing. In addition, we did not complete a structured loan sale transaction that we expected to be completed during the first quarter of 2003 until October 2003.
Since our capacity to borrow on our Revolver was reducing until the structured loan sale transaction was completed, we limited the amount of commitments to
originate new loans. Due to delayed completion of our structured loan sale transaction and the economic factors described above, our commitments to fund new
loans was decreasing and, as a result, our outstanding commitments to originate loans at September 30, 2003 of $14.3 million was significantly below our
outstanding commitments of $40.9 million at December 31, 2002.

     When fewer properties are being refinanced, the collateral value underlying our loans receivable could be reduced and, as a result, cause a reduction in the
equity our borrowers have in their properties. To the extent the loan goes into default, the magnitude of the impairment would be greater. In addition, during these
periods of time, the length of time to sell assets acquired in liquidation may increase.

     Dependency on Third Party Management of our Hotel Properties: As a REIT, we cannot operate our hotel properties. As a result, we are dependent upon
Arlington to operate and manage our hotel properties. The operating results of our hotel properties are subject to a variety of risks which could affect their ability
to generate sufficient cash flow to support the payment obligations under the master lease agreement. In the event Arlington defaults on the master lease
agreement, there is no assurance that we would be able to find a new operator for our hotel properties, negotiate to receive the same amount of lease income or
that we would be able to collect on Arlington’s guarantee. In addition, in the event Arlington defaults, we may incur costs, including holding costs, legal fees and
costs to re-franchise the properties.

     Hospitality Industry Factors: Reductions in business and discretionary travel caused a moderation in demand for hotel rooms and a slowdown in construction
of hospitality properties (including limited service hospitality properties). These reductions were primarily caused by (i) traveler concerns about the safety and
convenience of air travel, (ii) a general reluctance to be away from home and (iii) a downturn in corporate profits, investments and transactions which led to
aggressive business travel reductions. Although the Federal Reserve has lowered interest rates during the last three years to aid in stimulating the economy and to
provide liquidity, consumer and business confidence declined. This lack of confidence, which continued into the beginning of 2003, caused a significant strain on
the travel and hotel industries as well as numerous other industries. Political uncertainties impeded a rebound in consumer and investor confidence and spending.
However, the limited service segment of the hospitality industry has been less impacted and, during the downturn in business, has continued to outperform the
luxury and upscale sectors which experienced the weakest performance. Recently, there have been
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indications that the factors that were causing our reduced lending volume have subsided. There appears to be a rebound in revenue trends for the limited service
hospitality industry and more properties are being sold.

     Another factor which affects the limited service sector of the hospitality industry is a significant rise in gasoline prices within a short period of time. Most of
the limited service hospitality properties collateralizing our Aggregate Portfolio are located on interstate highways. Historically, when gas prices sharply increase,
occupancy rates decrease for properties located on interstate highways.

FLUCTUATIONS IN QUARTERLY RESULTS

     Our quarterly operating results will fluctuate based on a number of factors, including, among others:

 •  The completion of a structured loan sale in a particular period;
 •  Interest rate changes;
 •  The volume and timing of loan originations and prepayments of our loans receivable;
 •  The recognition of gains or losses on investments;
 •  The level of competition in our markets; and
 •  General economic conditions, especially those which affect the hospitality industry.

     As a result of these factors, quarterly results should not be relied upon as being indicative of performance in future quarters.

     In addition, to the extent a structured loan sale transaction is completed, (i) our interest income on loans receivable in future periods will be reduced until the
proceeds received are reinvested in new loan originations, (ii) interest expense will be reduced if we repay outstanding debt with the proceeds and (iii) we will
earn income from our ownership of a retained interest in the loans sold. Until the proceeds are fully reinvested, the net impact of a structured loan sale transaction
on future operating periods should be a reduction in interest income, net of interest expense.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

     Information regarding recently issued accounting pronouncements is included in Note 5 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

     On July 30, 2002, President Bush signed into law the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Act”) which imposes a wide variety of regulatory requirements on
publicly-held companies. These requirements include, but are not limited to:

 •  certification by the chief executive officer and chief financial officer that periodic financial statements filed with the SEC present fairly the operations
and financial condition of the Company;

 •  a prohibition on making loans to corporate executives;
 •  the establishment of a reporting obligation with respect to disclosure controls and procedures requiring the chief executive officer and chief financial

officer to certify in periodic reports filed with the SEC that they are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for
the Company and if there were significant changes in internal controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation;

 •  a requirement that annual reports (beginning December 31, 2004) contain an internal control report stating management’s responsibility for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls and procedures for financial reporting and management’s conclusions regarding the
effectiveness of internal controls and procedures for financial reporting attested to and reported on by the external auditor; and

 •  a reduction in the mandatory period for principal stockholders or senior executives to disclose changes in ownership of securities to two business days
after changes are executed.

     The Act required us to evaluate our current policies and procedures to ensure our compliance with current laws and regulations. We will continue to monitor
our compliance with all future regulations that are adopted and will take any necessary actions to maintain compliance.
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DIVIDENDS

     On January 13, 2003, we paid a $0.40 per share quarterly dividend and a $0.02 per share special dividend to common shareholders of record on December 31,
2002. On April 14, 2003, we paid a $0.40 per share quarterly dividend to common shareholders of record on March 31, 2003. On July 14, 2003, we paid a $0.38
per share quarterly dividend to common shareholders of record on June 30, 2003. The Board declared a $0.38 per share dividend to common shareholders of
record on September 30, 2003 which was paid on October 14, 2003.

     Our Board considers many factors including, but not limited to, expectations for future earnings and funds from operations (“FFO”), taxable income, the
interest rate environment, competition, our ability to obtain leverage and our loan portfolio activity in determining dividend policy. In addition, as a REIT we are
required to pay out 90% of taxable income. Consequently, our Board may amend the level of quarterly dividends and the dividend rate on a quarterly basis will
not necessarily correlate directly to any single factor such as quarterly FFO or earnings expectations.

     To the extent excess FFO is retained and not paid out as quarterly dividends, these funds will be used to originate loans, to reduce debt or to possibly pay year-
end special dividends.

     On May 28, 2003, President Bush signed into law the Jobs and Growth Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2003, which reduced the tax rate on both dividends
and long-term capital gains for most non-corporate taxpayers to 15% until 2008. This reduced maximum tax rate generally does not apply to ordinary REIT
dividends, which continue to be subject to tax at the higher rates applicable to ordinary income (a maximum rate of 35% under the new legislation). The new 15%
maximum tax rate, however, does apply to certain REIT distributions. This legislation may cause shares in non-REIT corporations to be a more attractive
investment to individual investors than shares in REITs and may adversely affect the market price of our common shares.

FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS (“FFO”)

     FFO (i) does not represent cash flows from operations as defined by generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), (ii) is not indicative of cash available
to fund all cash flow needs and liquidity, including our ability to make distributions, and (iii) should not be considered as an alternative to net income (as
determined in accordance with GAAP) for purposes of evaluating our operating performance. For a discussion of our cash flows from operations, see “Cash Flow
Analysis.” We believe FFO is helpful to investors as a supplemental measure of operating performance since, along with net income and cash flows, it provides a
useful measure of actual operating results. In addition, FFO is one of the measures utilized by the Board in its determination of dividends. FFO, as defined by the
National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (NAREIT), means net income or loss determined in accordance with GAAP, excluding gains or losses
from sales of property, plus real estate depreciation and amortization and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. We calculate FFO
based on the NAREIT definition. Our method of calculating FFO may be different from the methods used by other REITs and, accordingly, may not be directly
comparable to such other REITs. Our formulation of FFO set forth below is consistent with the NAREIT White Paper definition of FFO.

     Our FFO for the nine and three months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002 was computed as follows:

                 
  Nine Months Ended  Three Months Ended
  September 30,  September 30,

   
  2003  2002  2003  2002

     
  (In thousands)
Net income  $5,916  $ 7,976  $2,265  $2,164 
Less gain on sale of assets   (283)   (1,225)   (283)   — 
Add depreciation   1,419   1,435   478   461 
             
FFO  $7,052  $ 8,186  $2,460  $2,625 
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ITEM 3.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

     Since our consolidated balance sheet consists of items subject to interest rate risk, we are subject to market risk associated with changes in interest rates as
described below. Although management believes that the analysis below is indicative of our sensitivity to interest rate changes, it does not adjust for potential
changes in credit quality, size and composition of our balance sheet and other business developments that could affect our financial position and net income.
Accordingly, no assurances can be given that actual results would not differ materially from the potential outcome simulated by these estimates.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

     Our variable-rate loans receivable are generally at spreads over LIBOR consistent with the market. Increases or decreases in interest rates will not generally
have a material impact on the fair value of our variable-rate loans receivable. At September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, we had $66.3 million and
$42.1 million of variable-rate loans receivable, respectively, and $31.9 million and $7.3 million of variable-rate debt, respectively. We have interest rate risk on
the differential between our variable-rate loans receivable outstanding and our variable-rate debt ($34.4 million and $34.8 million at September 30, 2003 and
December 31, 2002, respectively). To the extent variable rates continue to decrease, our interest income net of interest expense would decrease. Since our
variable-rate loans receivable exceed our variable-rate debt, reductions in variable interest rates will negatively impact our results of operations.

     The sensitivity of our variable-rate loans receivable and debt to changes in interest rates is regularly monitored and analyzed by measuring the characteristics
of our assets and liabilities. We assess interest rate risk in terms of the potential effect on interest income net of interest expense in an effort to ensure that we are
insulated from any significant adverse effects from changes in interest rates. Based on our analysis of the sensitivity of interest income and interest expense at
September 30, 2003, if the consolidated balance sheet were to remain constant and no actions were taken to alter the existing interest rate sensitivity, each
hypothetical 100 basis point reduction in interest rates would reduce net income by approximately $344,000 on an annual basis. In comparison, based on our
analysis of the sensitivity of interest income and interest expense at December 31, 2002, if the consolidated balance sheet were to remain constant and no actions
were taken to alter the existing interest rate sensitivity, each hypothetical 100 basis point reduction in interest rates would reduce net income by approximately
$348,000.

     Changes in market interest rates on our fixed-rate loans receivable do not have an immediate impact on interest income. Our interest rate risk on our fixed-rate
loans receivable is primarily related to prepayments and maturities. The average maturity of our loan portfolio is less than their average contractual terms because
of prepayments. The average life of mortgage loans receivable tends to increase when the current mortgage rates are substantially higher than rates on existing
mortgage loans receivable and, conversely, decrease when the current mortgage rates are substantially lower than rates on existing mortgage loans receivable (due
to refinancings of fixed-rate loans receivable at lower rates).

     Our loans receivable are recorded at cost and adjusted by deferred commitment fees (recognized as an adjustment of yield over the life of the loan) and loan
loss reserves. The fair value of our fixed interest rate loans receivable is dependent upon several factors including changes in interest rates and the market for the
types of loans that we have originated. At September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, the estimated fair value of our fixed-rate loans receivable generally
approximates the remaining unamortized principal balance of the loans receivable, less any valuation reserves.

NOTES PAYABLE AND REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY

     Since our fixed-rate debt has coupon rates that are currently higher (in general) than market rates, the fair value of these financial instruments is higher than
their cost thus decreasing our net worth. The majority of this debt is the structured notes payable from our 1998 structured loan financing which cannot be repaid
other than through assets of the 1998 structured loan financing including collections of principal on the underlying loans receivable. Of our fixed-rate hotel
property mortgages, $6.1 million have significant penalties for prepayment, $4.7 million have no prepayment penalties and the remaining $4.0 million have
prepayment penalties of 2% of the prepaid amount.
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     The following presents the principal amounts, weighted average interest rates and fair values required by year of expected maturity to evaluate the expected
cash flows and sensitivity to interest rate changes of our outstanding debt at September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002.

     Market risk disclosures related to our outstanding debt as of September 30, 2003 were as follows:

                                 
  Twelve Month Period Ending September 30,         

       Carrying  Fair
  2004  2005  2006  2007  2008  Thereafter  Value  Value(1)

         
  (In thousands)
Fixed-rate debt (2)  $ 6,296  $ 4,314  $ 11,564  $ 1,808  $ 927  $ 10,581  $ 35,490  $37,224 
Variable-rate debt (primarily LIBOR-

based) (3)   31,850   —   —   —   —   —   31,850   31,850 
                         
Totals  $ 38,146  $ 4,314  $ 11,564  $ 1,808  $ 927  $ 10,581  $ 67,340  $69,074 
                         

(1) The estimated fair value is based on a present value calculation based on prices of the same or similar instruments after considering risk, current interest
rates and remaining maturities.

 
(2) The weighted average interest rate of our fixed-rate debt at September 30, 2003 was 6.7%.
 
(3) The weighted average interest rate of our variable-rate debt at September 30, 2003 was 2.9%.

     Market risk disclosures related to our outstanding debt as of December 31, 2002 were as follows:

                                 
  Year Ending December 31,         

       Carrying  Fair
  2003  2004  2005  2006  2007  Thereafter  Value  Value(1)

         
  (In thousands)
Fixed-rate debt (2)  $ 1,691  $ 7,103  $ 2,768  $ 2,006  $ 2,215  $ 25,408  $ 41,191  $43,520 
Variable-rate debt (primarily LIBOR-

based) (3)   7,300   —   —   —   —   —   7,300   7,300 
         
Totals  $ 8,991  $ 7,103  $ 2,768  $ 2,006  $ 2,215  $ 25,408  $ 48,491  $50,820 

         

(1) The estimated fair value is based on a present value calculation based on prices of the same or similar instruments after considering risk, current interest
rates and remaining maturities.

 
(2) The weighted average interest rate of our fixed-rate debt at December 31, 2002 was 6.9%.
 
(3) The weighted average interest rate of our variable-rate debt at December 31, 2002 was 3.1%.

RETAINED INTERESTS

     We have an investment in Retained Interests that is valued based on various factors including estimates of appropriate discount rates. Changes in the discount
rates used in determining the fair value of the Retained Interests will impact their carrying value. Any appreciation of our Retained Interests is included in the
accompanying balance sheet in beneficiaries’ equity while any depreciation of our Retained Interests is either included in the accompanying statement of income
as a realized loss (if there is a reduction in expected future cash flows) or on our balance sheet in beneficiaries’ equity as an unrealized loss. Assuming all other
factors (i.e., prepayments, losses, etc.) remained unchanged, if discount rates were 100 basis points and 200 basis points higher than rates estimated at
September 30, 2003, the value of our Retained Interests at September 30, 2003 would have decreased by approximately $1.0 million and $1.9 million,
respectively. Assuming all other factors (i.e., prepayments, losses, etc.) remained unchanged, if discount rates were 100 basis points and 200 basis points higher
than rates estimated at December 31, 2002, the value of our Retained Interests at December 31, 2002 would have decreased by approximately $1.1 million and
$2.0 million, respectively.
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ITEM 4.
Controls and Procedures

     Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have reviewed and evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15 (e)) as of September 30, 2003. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
have concluded that our current disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely notifying them of material information relating to us (including our
consolidated subsidiaries) required to be disclosed in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act.

     There have been no significant changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended September 30, 2003 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II
Other Information

ITEM 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

 A.  Exhibits

 3.1  Declaration of Trust. Previously filed as an exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form S-11 filed with the Commission on June 25, 1993, as
amended (Registration No. 33-65910), and incorporated herein by reference.

 3.1(a) Amendment No. 1 to Declaration of Trust. Previously filed as an exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form S-11 filed with the
Commission on June 25, 1993, as amended (Registration No. 33-65910), and incorporated herein by reference.

 3.1(b) Amendment No. 2 to Declaration of Trust (incorporated by reference from Registrant’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993).

 3.2  Bylaws. Previously filed as an exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form S-11 filed with the Commission on June 25, 1993, as amended
(Registration No. 33-65910), and incorporated herein by reference.

 *31.1 Section 302 Officer Certification — Chief Executive Officer

 *31.2 Section 302 Officer Certification — Chief Financial Officer

 **32.1 Section 906 Officer Certification — Chief Executive Officer

 **32.2 Section 906 Officer Certification — Chief Financial Officer

*  Filed herewith.
 
** Submitted herewith.

 B.  Reports on Form 8-K

  On August 13, 2003, we filed a report on Form 8-K pursuant to Item 12 related to our press release announcing our results of operations and financial
condition for the three and six months ended June 30, 2003.

  On September 15, 2003, we filed a report on Form 8-K pursuant to Item 12 related to our press release announcing our quarterly dividend declared.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

       
      PMC Commercial Trust
       
Date:  11/14/03    /s/ Lance B. Rosemore
     
      Lance B. Rosemore
      President and Chief Executive Officer
       
Date:  11/14/03    /s/ Barry N. Berlin
     
      Barry N. Berlin
      Chief Financial Officer
      (Principal Accounting Officer)

39



 

EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Lance B. Rosemore, Chief Executive Officer, certify that:

 1.  I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of PMC Commercial Trust;

 2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

 3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

 a)  designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 b)  evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 c)  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 a)  all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 b)  any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

      
Date: 11/14/03   /s/ Lance B. Rosemore
    
 

 
 

  
Lance B. Rosemore
Chief Executive Officer

 



 

EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Barry N. Berlin, Chief Financial Officer, certify that:

 1.  I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of PMC Commercial Trust;

 2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

 3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

 a)  designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 b)  evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 c)  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 a)  all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 b)  any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

      
Date: 11/14/03   /s/ Barry N. Berlin
    
 

 
 

  
Barry N. Berlin
Chief Financial Officer

 



 

EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

     In connection with the Quarterly Report of PMC Commercial Trust (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2003 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Lance B. Rosemore, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

     1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

     2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Lance B. Rosemore
Lance B. Rosemore
Chief Executive Officer
November 14, 2003

     This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

     A signed original of this statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



 

EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

     In connection with the Quarterly Report of PMC Commercial Trust (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2003 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Barry N. Berlin, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

     1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

     2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Barry N. Berlin
Barry N. Berlin
Chief Financial Officer
November 14, 2003

     This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

     A signed original of this statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


